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Reference: Adjutant General's Files

Location: Redding, Shasta County
Organized December 19, 1889
Reconstituted October 31, 1891
Reconstituted December 9, 1895%
Mustered into Federal Service July 8, 1898«
Mustered into Federal Service Fabruary 26, 1899k
Mustered out July 5, 1899wk

Reorganized, mustered in and stationed Placerville Oct. 16, 1899%

Hustered ot May 10, 19074%
Reorganized, mustered in and stationed Napa May 11, 1907%3%
Mustered out June 28, 19132337

Reorganized, mustered in and stationed Tulare June 28, 15133¥34%

Mustered out April 15, 1916TTTPEE

Reconstituted and stationed Red Bluff April 15, 1916+
Mustersd into Federal Service June 27, 191644
Mustered out of Federal Service November 15, 1916++4
Resumption of service inthe National Guard 1916++#+
Called into Feddral Service March 26, 1917+++34

Redesirnated Company H, 16Q@th Infantry Regiment Oct. 1k, 19174+++++
000

*Company H, formerly Company B, Eighth Infantry Batlalion redesignated Company E,Eighth

Infantry Regiment, Uctober 31,1891. Adjutant General Report 1891-1892,General Order No.

17, page 88 (provides for organization of Eighth Infantry Regiment,) Adjutant General
Report 1891-1392,page LO, (The rank date of Colonel Park Henshaw, Oct. 31,1891, is to
be used as the date of reoganization of Company E, Eighth Infantry Regiment,

**Company E, Eighth Infantry Reg., redesignated Company H, Twelfth Infantry Battalion,

Dec. 7,1895. Two days latar, Dec. 9, Company H, Twelfth Infantry Battalion redesig-

nated Company H, Second Infantry Reg., Third Brigade. Adjutant General Report 1895-1896

General Orders No. 17,18, page 87,88,

page 8,

#*#¥%Adjutant General Report 1899-1900, page 6.
etk Adjutant General Report 1899-1900, General Order No. 7, par. 5, page 6.

¥#%Company H redesignated Company H, Edighth Infantry Regiment and mustered into Federd
Serviee during the Spanish-American War July 8, 1898.Adjutant General Report 1896-1898,

FA new company Organized in Placervills and designated Comoany H, Second Infantry, Oct.

16, 1899, Adjutant General Report 1899-1900, page 8.

TTA djutant General Report 19507-1908, paze 3.
$9TA new Company organized at Napa and designated Company H, Second Infantry May 11,1907.

General and Special Orders and Circulars 1907, G. 0. No. 10.
F2FPAdjutant General Report 1910-191_!4, page 9.

2T29FA new company organized at Tulare and designated Comany H,Second Infantry, June 28,

1913, General and Special Orders and Curculars 1913, General Order No. 1l.

7377919General and Special Orders and Bulletins 1916, G. O. No. 10, paragraph 1.

#Company H, formerly First Separate Company, Second Brigade organized Feb. 3, (per

General Order No. 2, 1916) at Red Bluff was designated Company H, Second Infantry, Apr.

15, 1916,
General and Special Orders and Bulletins 1916, General Order No, 10
as part of the Second Infantr

was musterad into Feder

Service for

H g Reg.
duty on the Mexican Border, June 27, 1915, Aﬁjnt,ant General Report 191h-1720, p 17.

+++Adjutant General Report 1914-1920, page 17. .
++++General and Spe#ial Orders and Bulletins 1916, G. O. No. 34, page 150.
+++++Company H, as part of the Second Infantry Regiment was called into Federal Service

.during the World War March 26, 1917. Adjutant General Report 1914-1920, page 22,

4444400 H, Second Infantry Reg:oint. redesignated GomomwthAI&fin%w
ge, Ap )

1}, 1917. Correspondence, His cal Section, Army
File 000.4, Adjutant General's Office,

i

%&il:ent Oct.



COUPANY H (continued)

Reconstituted and Stationed Red Bluff April 15, 191€s
Mustered into Federal Service June 27, 1916##¢
Mustered out of Federal Service November 15, 191€%+¢
Resumption of service in the National Guard 1S1Gst+#
Called into Federal Service lMarch 26, 1217++¢¢¢
Redesignated October 14, 1917¢+ts¢¢

«000,

#Company H, formerly First Separate Comjzny, Second Brigade organized
Feb. 3, (ver General Order No. 2, 1916) at Red Bluff was designated
Company H, Second Infantry, April 15, 1916.

General and Special Orders and Bulletins 1916, General Order No. 10.

#+Company H, as part of the Second Infantry Hegiment was mustered into
Federal Service for duty on the Mexican Border, June 27, 1816.
Adjutant General Report 1914-1920, page 17.

st#Adjutant General Report 1214-1920, page 17.

#+eeGeneral and Special Orders and Bulletins 1916, G. 0. No. 34, pége 150.

¢sts2Company H, as part of the Second Infantry fegiment was called into
Federal Service during the World War and attached to the 160th Infan-
try, 40th Division, March why 1917
Adjutant General Report 1914-1920, page 22.

#+3++eCompany H, Second Infantry Hegiment redesignated Company H, 160th
Infantry Regiment, 4Uth Division, October 14, 1917.
\ Correspondence Historical Section, Army War College, April 30, 1926.
““  Pile 000.4. Adjutant General's 0Office.
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&s B. Dogier, Captain Dec. 18, 1891 gan. ' 2%, 1806%

Albert M. Irwin, First Lieut. LDeec. 18, 1891 Jan, 25, 189a*

Wm. E. Smith, Captain Deec., 17, 1837 Jan, 27, 1898
J. E. Estep, First Lleut. Dec. 17, 1897 Jan., 27, 1808
C. A. Swisler, Captain Oct. 18, 1899 Nov. 6, 1899
Horace H, Walling, First Lieut. Oct. 16, 1899 Rov. 6, 1889

(Resigned Feb. 28, 1901)

C. A. Swisler, Captain ! ,
(Re-elected Oct. 26, 1901) -~ - TR
dax Mierson, First Lieut. Apr. 10, 1901 iy 29, 1901

C. A, Swisler, Captain '
, (Re-elected Nov. 21, 1903
Max Mierson, First Lieut.’
iContinuad in office)
Resigned Mar. 10, 1905)

T. F. Smith, First Lieut. Apr. 26, 1905 May 13, 1905
T. F. Smith, Captain - July 12, 1905 - Bug. 12, 1905
John Copland, First Lieut. July 12, 1905 Aug. 12, 1805
(Resigned Feb. 1, 1907)
W. C. Burgess, First Lieut. . Feb. 27, 1907 Apr. 16, 1207
G. C. Gardner, Captain Mar. 25, 1905 Apr. 26, 1905#%
(Transferred from Co. H, 5th
Inf. 19207)
(Resigned Mar. 11, 1908)
Percy King, Captain Aug. 17, 1908 Sept. 24, 1908
Chester C. Treadway, First Mar. 25, 1905 Apr. 26, 1905%%

(Transferred from Lieut.
Co. H, 5th Inf. 1907)
(Resigned Jan. 17, 1908)

¥W. T. Rugherford, First Lieut. Aug. 17, 1908 Sept. 24, 1908

Percy King, Captain apr. 17, 1908  Apr. 19, 1909

We. T« Rutherford, First Lieut. Aug., 17, 1208 Apr. 19, 1209
.000.

#Captain Dozier and Lieutenant Irwin, retained their former Commis-
sions as of December 18, 1891, when they commanded Company E,
Eighth Infantry Regliment, Fifth Brigade.

#%Captain Gardner and Lieutenant Treadway retained their former
commissions as of March 25, 1905, when they commanded Compuny H,
Fifth Infantry Regiment.
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.queeadint_ggiéﬁg:g (continued) .
l%geby D, Wheeler, Captain une £8, 1913 3%51 3, 1913

(Resigned Jan. 18, 1915)

Fernand Detoy, First Lieut, June 28, 1913 July 3, 1912
(Resigned Jan. 16, 1915)

D. M., Crow, Captain Jan. 286, 1915 Feb. 18, 1915
(Resigned Feb. 2, 1218) -

8. W. Whitcher, Captain Feb. 15, 1918 Mar. 7, 1916

John Noyes, First Lieut. Jan., 26, 1915 Feb. 18, 1815
(Resigned Sept. 2, 1215)

8. W. Whitcher, First Lieut. Jan., 5, 1918 Jan. 24, 1918
(Promoted to Capt., Feb. 15, 1918)

Leo 4. MeCoy, Captain Feb. 8, 1916 Feb. 19, 19le#

(Transferred from lst Separate
Co., Apr. 15, 1918) .
M. 0. Ballard, First Lieut. Feb. '8, 1916 Feb., 19, 1916%
(Transferred from lst Separate
Co., Apr. 15, 1918)

Activities:

Company H was organized at Redding, December 19, 1889, as Company E,
Eighth Infantry Battalion. When the battalion became a regiment
October 31, 1891, Company E was redesignated Company E, Eighth
Infantry Regiment. The unit retained that designation until
December 9, 1895, when 1t was redesignated Company H, Second
Infantry Regiment, Third Brigade.®* :

One of the first activities Company H participated in after its
redesignation was a2 regimentzl encampment held at SBanta Cruz from
August 15, to 22, 1897. This camp, according to Major Frank Hice,
United States Army, was one of the hardest working camps held by
the National Guard since 1820. With few exceptions, every oifi-
cer and man from the Brigadier-General down to the privaie in

the ranks, was hard at work from reveille to retreat.

.000.

#Captain McCoy and Lieutenant Ballard retained thelr former com-
missions as of February 3, 1916, and February 8, 1916, respec-
tively, when they commanded the First Separate Company of lafan-
try at Red Bluff, '

##Ad jutant General Report 1895-1896, General Orders No. 17, 18,
pages 87, 88.




Activities: (continued)

Many beneficiel results were noted from the continual drill and
maneuvering, and at the close of the encampment, Company H, as
part of the Second Infantry was highly commented upon in perform-
ing thelr military duties so well.®* Company H participated in
many such encampments. The one held during 1910 was acclalmed

as belng excellent in all maneuvers.

Company H, &= a unit of the Becond Infantry Regiment together
with many other organizations of the National Guard, encamped
at Atascadero on October &, 1810, for an encampument of ten days.
The instruction was thorough and included close order drill,
shelter tent drill, extended order drill, plcking up indistinct
@  targets and estimating their distance. - men were also coached
in advance guard outpost, a night bivouac, during which the men
individually cooked one meal each; night alarms, patrolling and
digging trenches were alsc a part of the progranm.

Regular Army officers were detailed as instructors and inspectors,
and gave valuable advice tc the National Guardsuen. October
eleventh was get aside for a bivouac between the "Reds and Blues."

. The Ttwo forces represented rival armies which after spending a

” night in action, subjected to a chill, drizzling rain, the infan-
! try and cavalry fought a battle that deserved honorable mention.#*#
The following list indicates the number of encauwpments Company H

F participated in prior to being mustered into the World War in 1817:

LLAk LOCALLON LUl TH
1897 Santa Crus Aug. 15 - 22

73] 1200 Uarysville Oct. 12 - 27
1901 Santa Cruz June 14 - £3
1902 Santa Cruz . July 7 - Aug. 2
1908 canta Cruz : Aug. 9 = 2E
1804 Atascadero bug. 135 - Aug. 26
1807 Fort Scott July S - 20
1908 Atascadero Oct.e 4 - 15
1909 Vallegjo Oct. 10 - 22
1910 Atascadero Cct. & - 12
1812 San Franeisco Aug. 11 - 21
1915 Fort Scott Aug. 15 = 82

+000

+ #Ad Jutant General Heport 1896-1898, pages R28-40,
~#*8acramento Union, October 12, 1810, page 10, column 5.




Activities: (continued)

Target practice was another essential factor in the military re-
guirements of the National Guard-of California. During the year
of 1886, changes were .nade governing target practice which proved
much more satisfactory than the previous methods. Aside from
each regiment being newly supplied with a full set of silhouettes
for field work, they were also supplied with a set of bench re-
loading tools. These tools enabled the troops to reload their
own ammunition at a cost of from $11.00 to $12.00 per 1,000,
thereby saving about §7.00 or $8.00 per 1,000 on ammunition,
giving them that much more to expend in target practice.

. The members of Company H showed a gradual galn in the numbers
of men qualifying for medals. During the year of 1803, the
number of men had increased from a small group to that of thirty-
four. These men recelved medals in revolver practice, advancing
Company H to the second highest company in the Second Infantry
Regiment in that particular type of shooting. Throughout the
life of Company H, it held a fair rating awmong the other compas= -

l nies of the regiment.

When the United States declared war with Spain on April 21, 1888,

practically every National Guardsman in California was eager to

8 volunteer his services. Company H was admitted to the volunteer

ol service on July 8, 1858. Although the troops were not seant to

| the Pnilippine Islands, they were put on guard and patrol duty
at Camp Barrett, Oakland, until September 13, 1888. The unit
was then sent to Vancouver, Washington, where it remained until

I .g; February 6, 1889. The company was on ihat date mustered out of
Federal service and the troops returned to their home stations.

Coupany H did not report back for duty in the National Guard withe

in the specified time, 150 days after mustering out of the Federal
service, and was therefore mustered out of service on July 5, !
1889.% A few months later however, a new company H was formed

at Placerville and mustered in October 16, 1889. |

This change was but one of many that caused the name of Company H

to become identified with several sections of the State. The

company at Placerville was in existence until May 10, 1907, when
lack of interest caused the company to be mustered out for

=000,

\ #Adjutant General Report 1889-1900, General Order No. 7, par. 5,




Activitiess (continued)

inefficlency. The following day Company H was reorganized and
stationed at Napa where it remained until April 14, 1813. Two
months later, June 28, 1913, Company H was reorganized at Tulare
where it remained intact for a period of three years. The last
_location .for the unit prior to the World War was at Hed Bluff, .
being organized and mustered in there on April 15, 1916.

/

Company H, as part of the Second Infantry Hegiment was called into
active service, April 20, 1906, following the £San Francisco
Earthquake which occurred on April eighteenth. The troops re-
mained on duty in and near the stricken city several weeks. They
were relieved from duty on May 19, 1806, and were highly compli-
mented by Adjutant-General J. B. Lauck in having performed their
duties in perfect military manner.

On October 21, 1911, Company H participated in cne of Bacramento's
most elaborate celebrations, known as, "The Greater Sacramento
Annexation Celebration." Never in the history of the city had
there been such a wonderful offering for the public as was shown
in the industrial parade. Company H, with the other units of

the Second Infantry Regiment, led the first division of the huge
parade which was long remembered by all who witnesged it.

- Aside from the military section orf the parade, one of the main
features was a section of about thirty automobiles containing
"boosters" from the lower river district of Sacramento “ounty.
The boosters carried banneis advocating a state highway via the
Sacramento River route to San Francisco. This showing was fol-
lowed by ripples of applause and the parade for the afternoon
was of benefit to the Sacramentans who did not realize the extent
of the manufacturing industry there.®

Company H, while stationed at Tulare, was invited to attend many
of the eity's soclal and c¢ivie functions. This unit having been
recently organized made a splendid showing in drills with their
new uniforms, and gave the -citizens every reason to display the
unit to the public. The first apportunity came when Company H
was jnavited to attend & competitive drill to be held at the
Tulare Prosperity Carnival on Beptember 23, 1912. The spectators

«000,

' #The Sacramento Union, October 22, i)}, page 25, column 1.




Activities: (econtinued)

who went prepared to giggle and sneer at faults, were instead
compelled to pay tribute to effective work and ensemble that
would have done credit to bodies established months instead of
weeks. Company H was awarded the Cup which was presented by
Captain T. H. Thompson, who complimented the members on their

efficiency. In view of the few weeks the company had practiced
and the few drills they held, the unit made a striking appear-
ance in their new uniforms.¥*

_The following month, Company H was invited to Hanford for an

equipment race which was held during the Xing County Falr on
@  October 11, 1l8l3. The event consisted of maneuvers that called

for rapid work in removing and donning clothing and military
equipment at set places. The race was followed by an inspection
which was to ascertain if the participants slighted their work.
Tulare, however, won by & wide margin and in addition to the
handsome silver cup, Company H received the coapliments of the

" officers judging the contest.¥%*

‘ After the unit's reorganization on April 15, 1916, at Hed Bluff,
i the citizens displayed a feeling of being proud in having a mili-
i tary organization for their city. Company H had been organized
! but a few days when they made their initial public sppearance
at a special Easter service in the Christian Church: Forty-four
members marched in formation from the armory to the church, where
. they were joined by members of the Grand Army of the Kepublieg,
who sat with the company during the services. In the absence of
Qg; Captain L. A HcCoy, the company was commanded by Lieutenant
M. Ballard. The church was splendidly decorated for the services
and the troops were dressed befitting the occasion. They not
only wore their new uniforms but also had olive drab gloves to
k| match the uniforms. The gloves were supplied by sowe friend who
A was enthusiastic over Company H. 6Special numbers by the chorus
cholr and orchestra were features of the morning. William
Hensley, & member of the Christian Church for eighty-two years
who celebrated his one hundreih birthday the day before, led
congregation in prayer. The message of the pastor, Reverend
Shirley R. Shaw, was a combined reference to the Easter story
and the spirit of true soldiery.¥#

;000.

' #Tulare Daily Advahce, September 24, 1013, page 1, column 5,

» #%Tulare Daily Advance, October 12, 1915, page 1, column l.

¢ #¥¥Red Bluff News, April 21, 1918, page 1, column 5.
Red Bluff News, April 28, 1918, page 4, column 4.




Activities: (continued)

The second public appearance of the newly organized company was
when the unit particlpated in a lMay Day celebration. One of the
largest crowds ever gathered together in HRed Bluff, enjoyed the
festivity which was under the auspices of the volunteer firemen
of that city. The prograam was carried out exactly as had been
announced and when the street dance ended at an early hour of
the morning, confetti was plled inches deep all over the side-

[ - walks of the business district. The opening feature of the

i celebration was the grand parade. In addition to the various

1 fraternal orders that partiecipated, the entire enrcllment of the

i Red Bluff Grammar Schools marched in a body, led by their band.

' ¥_  Bach grade wore a distinguished coler which gave them a splendid

. appearance.

The military section which was composed of the wmembers of Come
pany H, deserves honorable mentiom. They were attired in their
service uniforms and carried light marching equipment. As a
result of the grand showing made by the coupany, a huge silk
flag was presented them by C. K. King, president of the Chaumber
of Commerce and owner of Hed Bluff's big department store.

Hr. King's action in this matter was highly satisfactory to
Captain L. A. HcCoy, as it showed beyond all gquestion of doubt
that the Red Bluff merchants were in favor of the military organ-
ization.*

Just two weeks later, about forty members of the company enjoyed

an overnight encampment at thelr rifle range on Blue Tent Creek.

viJ The unit marched out on Saturday night, leaving about 7315 P.il.,
and were refreshed by a sfeaming hot cup of coffee served by the
company cook, Arthur Hartin and his assistant, M. W. lcDowell,
A guard wes put out and most of the company spent the night
attempting to break through the guard lines without being chal-
lenged. As a result, the Guard made so much noise challenging,
that the others could not sleep and daylight found most of the
men out of their blankets. They were all up in time f{or mess
call which approved to be about the most acceptable oi' all the
noises made around camp.

The men were taught how to piteh tents, guard mount, and other
maneuvers and shol ten rounds apiece at the 200 yard range. They
returned to KHed Bluff about five P.M., Sunday, feeling that the

o N

«000,

' #Red Bluff News, May 5, 1916, page 3, columns 3-5.




success of the trip was due largely to the abllity of cooks,
Martin and McDowell.®

Company H was called into Federal service for duty at the NMexican
Border on June 87, 1918. Prior to belng called to the Mexican

- Border, every member of Company H was inoculated with 750,000,000

germs of anti-typhiod bacteria. These troops received a great

deal of credit as not one of them fainted while standing in line
waiting thelr turn, as did many of the troops 1n other companies.
The value of the vaccine even to individuasls in private l1ife could
not be over estimated in keeping them out of danger of the dreaded
disease, This held more significance to the soldlers as they were
centered in camps where sanitary conditions were hard to deal with.
Although individusl treatment was costly, every member of the
Bational Guard of California received the treatament which took
about twenty days, being given at proper intervals. Dr. F. L. Doane,
the company surgeon, administered the "dope™ for Company H and was
ably assisted by Hospital Sergeant Selzer and Nurse Will Norvell.%®
The troops were sent to Nogales, Arizona, where they renained on
guard and patrol duty until Hovember 15, 1216. This was the last
major activity the unit participated in until the call came for
troops 1In the World War.

Company H, as part of the Second Infantry Reglment was called

into Federal service on March 28, 1917, for duty during the ¥orld
War .= 8Company H, redesignated Company H, 180th Infantry Fegiment

October 14, 1017.%##* For additional information concernlng this
company's activities, refer to History of the 180th Infantry, 40th

Division.

.000.

#Red Bluff Rews, May 28, 1918, page 7, column 1.
##fed Bluff News, June 15, 1918, page 7, coluan 2.
###.d jutznt General Report 1914-1820, page Z21.

#a##Correspondence, fAlstorical Bection, Army War College, April 30,
1926. Flle # 000.4, AdJutent General's Files.
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